YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

CONTENTS

	Page
Independent auditors' report	1-2
Financial statements:	
Statements of financial position	3
Statements of activities	4
Statements of functional expenses	5-6
Statements of cash flows	7
Notes to financial statements	8-10
Schedule of expenditures of federal awards	11-13
Notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards	14
Independent auditors' report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other matters based on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with <i>Government Auditing Standards</i>	15-16
Independent auditors' report on compliance for each major program and on internal control over compliance required by the Uniform Guidance	17-18
Schedule of findings and questioned costs	19-20



A Professional Corporation

Independent Auditors' Report

Board of Directors
Capital Resource Conservation and
Development Area Council, Inc.
Carlisle, Pennsylvania

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Capital Resource Conservation and Development Area Council, Inc. (the Organization) (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of September 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the Organization's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Organization as of September 30, 2017 and 2016, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. *Code of Federal Regulations* (CFR) Part 200, *Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards*, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

Brown Schultz Steidan: Fritz

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated December 22, 2017 on our consideration of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Camp Hill, Pennsylvania December 22, 2017

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

	2017	2016
ASSETS		
Cash Grants receivable Prepaid expenses	\$ 51,769 54,272 3,448	\$ 56,985 39,313 1,778
Total assets	\$ 109,489	\$ 98,076
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS		
Liabilities: Accounts payable Accrued payroll and benefits Deferred revenue	\$ 20,974 40,926 26,748	\$ 15,315 47,545 16,693
Total liabilities	88,648	79,553
Unrestricted net assets	20,841	18,523
Total liabilities and net assets	\$ 109,489	\$ 98,076

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

	2017	2016
Support and revenue:		
NRCS agreements	\$ 692,435	\$ 840,833
Northeast SARE	23,338	34,615
Other federal grants	15,799	
DEP Tillage Survey	101,488	91,606
Other private funding grants	1,896	6,807
County contributions	2,100	2,100
Project service fees	3,500	6
Contributions	250	
Interest income	27	52
Miscellaneous revenue	15,318	4,097
Total support and revenue	856,151	980,116
Functional expenses:		
Program services	776,008	885,474
Management and general	77,825	93,023
Total functional expenses	853,833	978,497
Increase in unrestricted net assets	2,318	1,619
Unrestricted net assets, beginning of year	18,523	16,904
Unrestricted net assets, end of year	\$ 20,841	\$ 18,523

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

		2017	
	Program	Management	
	services	and general	Totals
Functional expenses:			
Contracted services	\$ 63,811		\$ 63,811
Salaries	588,252	\$ 44,808	633,060
Payroll taxes	55,317	4,090	59,407
Employee benefits	30,655	1,630	32,285
Accounting fees		10,700	10,700
Rent expense		9,600	9,600
Conferences and meetings	1,076	15	1,091
Dues and subscriptions	49	665	714
Insurance	408	2,131	2,539
Miscellaneous	689	2,780	3,469
Postage and delivery		116	116
Supplies	1,468	988	2,456
Travel	34,283	302	34,585
Total functional expenses	\$ 776,008	\$ 77,825	\$ 853,833

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

		2016	
	Program	Management	
	services	and general	Totals
Functional expenses:			
Contracted services	\$ 66,163		\$ 66,163
Salaries	681,217	\$ 54,659	735,876
Payroll taxes	64,853	5,095	69,948
Employee benefits	30,587	2,510	33,097
Accounting fees		10,700	10,700
Rent expense		9,600	9,600
Conferences and meetings	1,261	11	1,272
Dues and subscriptions	180	900	1,080
Insurance		1,762	1,762
Miscellaneous	2,351	6,177	8,528
Postage and delivery	414	92	506
Printing and reproduction	225		225
Supplies	903	1,046	1,949
Travel	37,320	471_	37,791
Total functional expenses	\$ 885,474	\$ 93,023	\$ 978,497

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

	2017	2016
Cash flows from operating activities:		
Increase in unrestricted net assets	\$ 2,318	\$ 1,619
Adjustments:		
Amortization		1,078
(Increase) decrease in:		
Grants receivable	(14,959)	(32,761)
Prepaid expenses	(1,670)	1,297
Increase (decrease) in:		
Accounts payable	5,659	8,510
Accrued payroll and benefits	(6,619)	4,864
Deferred revenue	10,055	(56,155)
Total adjustments	(7,534)	(73,167)
Net cash used in operating activities	(5,216)	(71,548)
Cash flows used in financing activities, payment on line of credit		(1,078)
Cash:		
Beginning of year	56,985	129,611
End of year	\$ 51,769	\$ 56,985

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

1. Activities and significant accounting policies:

Nature of activities:

Capital Resource Conservation and Development Area Council, Inc. (the Organization) is a nonprofit corporation that networks people, resources and projects to promote responsible use and conservation of the region's natural, community and economic resources. The Organization serves Adams, Cumberland, Dauphin, Franklin, Lancaster, Lebanon and York Counties. The Organization is supported primarily through cooperative agreements with the Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) of the United States Department of Agriculture.

Basis of accounting:

The Organization prepares its financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting, with support and revenue recognized when earned and expenses recognized when incurred.

Financial statement presentation:

Financial statement presentation follows the requirements of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958, *Not-for-Profit Entities*. Under ASC 958, the Organization reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets. There are no temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net assets at September 30, 2017 or 2016.

Grants receivable:

Grants receivable are stated at outstanding balances. The Organization considers grants receivable to be fully collectible. If collection becomes doubtful, an allowance for doubtful accounts will be established or the accounts will be charged to expense when that determination is made by management. Unpaid balances remaining after the stated payment terms are considered past due. Recoveries of previously charged off accounts are recorded when received.

Deferred revenue:

Grant revenue is recognized when earned and as related expenses are incurred. Grant proceeds received in advance of the related spending are recorded as deferred revenue and are then recognized as revenue as expenses are incurred.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

1. Activities and significant accounting policies (continued):

Income tax status:

The Organization is recognized as exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and similar statutes and files a Form 990, *Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax*, with the Internal Revenue Service on an annual basis.

Functional allocation of expenses:

Expenses are charged to programs and supporting services on the basis of actual expenses. Management and general expenses include those expenses that are not directly identifiable with any other specific function, but provide for overall support and direction of the Organization.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Estimates affecting the financial statements are functional allocations of expenses which are based, in part, on management's estimates. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent events:

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through December 22, 2017, the date which the financial statements were available to be issued.

2. Concentration of credit risk:

The Organization's cash balances in financial institutions, at times, may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

3. Deferred revenue:

Deferred revenue consists of the following at September 30:

	2017	2016
NRCS	\$ 19,818	\$ 14,153
Other	6,930	2,540
	\$ 26,748	\$ 16,693

4. Contingency:

The Organization's funding sources reserve the right to perform audit work. Disallowed costs, if any, resulting from such work would have to be absorbed by the Organization. Management does not believe that any significant costs would be incurred by the Organization from audits by the funding agencies.

5. Operating lease:

The Organization leases office space under a month-to-month operating lease, with either party having the option to terminate the lease by giving a 90-day written notice of intent. Total rent expense, including utilities, for each of the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016 was \$9,600.

6. Lines of credit:

The Organization maintains two \$50,000 lines of credit, with two different banks. One of the lines bears interest at the prime rate plus 1.25%, and the other bears interest at the prime rate plus 1%. Both lines are collateralized by substantially all business assets. At September 30, 2017 and 2016, there were no balances on the lines.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

CFDA#	Federal grantor/program name	Expenditures
	United States Environmental Distriction Agency	
	United States Environmental Protection Agency:	
	Passed through the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection:	
66.466	Chesapeake Bay Watershed BMP	\$ 101,488
00.400	Onesapeake bay Watershed bivii	Ψ 101, 400
	Passed through Chesapeake Bay Trust:	
66.466	Building Capital RC&D Capacity by Supporting Communications	
	Capacity and Staffing of the Collaborative	8,468
	United States Department of Agriculture:	
	National Institute of Food and Agriculture	
	Passed through University of Vermont:	
10.215	Northeast Advanced Agroforestry Training for Natural Resources and	
	Agricultural Educators	23,338
	Natural Resources Conservation Service:	
10.069	CREP Technical Assistance	19,571
10.069	Technical Assistance and Training - Organic & Irrigation Producers	61
10.069	Technical Assistance in USDA Service Centers, Technical Offices	
	and State Office and Agreement Servicing	121,010
10.072	Technical Assistance in USDA Service Centers, Technical Offices	
	and State Office and Agreement Servicing	23,437
10.902	Technical Assistance to Producers of Local Food	5,691
10.902	Technical Assistance - Hispanic Outreach	10
10.902	Technical and Planning Assistance - York	6,154
10.902	Technical and Planning Assistance - Bradford	6,069
10.902	Technical and Planning Assistance - Lancaster	3,208
10.902	Technical and Planning Assistance	5,524
10.902	Technical and Planning Assistance - York	4,330
10.902	Technical and Planning Assistance	194
10.902	Technical Assistance for Publication Development	253
10.902	Technical Assistance/Development of Soil Health Videos	3,097
	(continued)	

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

CFDA#	# Federal grantor/program name E		enditures
	United States Department of Agriculture:		
	United States Department of Agriculture: Natural Resources Conservation Service (continued):		
10.902	Technical Assistance in USDA Service Centers, Technical Offices		
10.502	and State Office and Agreement Servicing	\$	6,581
10.904	Watershed Planning and Implementation Project	Ψ	7,099
10.904	Watershed Planning - Dam Assessment Reports		47,470
10.912	High Tunnel Technical Assistance		3,078
10.912	Technical Assistance - Hispanic Outreach		26
10.912	Technical Assistance - Mill Hall field team		2,369
10.912	Employing Short-Term Adaptive Management Strategies to Improve		_,000
	Soil Health on Prescribed Grazing Operations		687
10.912	Technical and Planning Assistance - Chesapeake Bay Engineer		41,264
10.912	Technical and Planning Assistance - York		592
10.912	Technical and Planning Assistance Bradford		1,457
10.912	Technical and Planning Assistance - Lancaster		523
10.912	Technical and Planning Assistance		6,265
10.912	Technical and Planning Assistance - York		2,090
10.912	Technical Assistance for Publication Development		1,140
10.912	Technical Assistance in USDA Service Centers, Technical Offices		
	and State Office and Agreement Servicing		223,047
10.912	Technical Assistance for Implementation for EQIP Contracts		28,449
10.913	Technical Assistance for Easements Monitoring		22,165
10.917	Technical Assistance and Training for Irrigation Producers		190
10.917	Technical Assistance in USDA Service Centers, Technical Offices		
	and State Office and Agreement Servicing		8,043
10.924	Technical Assistance in USDA Service Centers, Technical Offices		
	and State Office and Agreement Servicing		19,479
10.926	Technical Assistance -Hispanic Outreach		26
10.926	Technical Assistance - Mill Hall field team		3,124
10.926	Technical and Planning Assistance - York		5,237
10.926	Technical and Planning Assistance - Bradford		7,831
10.926	Technical and Planning Assistance - Lancaster		3,376
	(continued)		40

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

CFDA#	# Federal grantor/program name Expe		penditures	
	United States Department of Agriculture:			
	Natural Resources Conservation Service (continued):			
10.926	Technical and Planning Assistance	\$	2,108	
10.926	Technical and Planning Assistance -York		12,990	
10.931	Technical and Planning Assistance		3,998	
10.931	Financial Assistance for, but not limited to, restorations and			
	associated easement activities		1,060	
10.931	Technical assistance for ACEP & WRE		11,251	
10.931	Technical Assistance in USDA Service Centers, Technical Offices			
	and State office and agreement servicing		21,098	
			<u> </u>	
			692,722	
	Passed through National Grazing Lands Coalition:			
10.902	Advancing Education, Conservation and Outreach on Grazing Lands		3,755	
. 0.002	ratarioning Education, Control value and Caucach on Crazing Edited		0,7.00	
	Passed through Chesapeake Bay Foundation:			
10.912	Promoting Rotational Grazing in the Chesapeake Bay Watershed		3,575	
10.512	1 Tomoung Notational Grazing in the Officsapeake Day Watershed		0,010	
		\$	833,346	
		Ψ	000,040	

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

Basis of presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the Organization under programs of the federal government for the year ended September 30, 2017. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Organization, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of the Organization.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance, Cost Principles for Non-profit Organizations, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

The Organization has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under Uniform Guidance.



A Professional Corporation

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
Capital Resource Conservation and
Development Area Council, Inc.
Carlisle, Pennsylvania

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Capital Resource Conservation and Development Area Council, Inc. (the Organization) which comprise the statement of financial position as of September 30, 2017, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 22, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Organization's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Camp Hill, Pennsylvania December 22, 2017

Brown Schultz Steidan: Fritz



A Professional Corporation

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

Board of Directors
Capital Resource Conservation and
Development Area Council, Inc.
Carlisle, Pennsylvania

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Capital Resource Conservation and Development Area Council, Inc.'s (the Organization) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the *OMB Compliance Supplement* that could have a direct and material effect on the Organization's major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2017. The Organization's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations and terms and conditions of awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Organization's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. *Code of Federal Regulations* Part 200, *Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards* (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Organization's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2017.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Organization's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Camp Hill, Pennsylvania December 22, 2017

Brown Schultz Steidan: Fritz

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

Financial statements	
Type of auditors' report issued:	Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:	
- Material weakness(es) identified?	yes <u>X</u> no
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be material weakness(es)? 	yes <u>X</u> none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?	yes <u>X</u> no
Federal awards	
Internal control over major programs:	
- Material weakness(es) identified?	yes <u>X</u> no
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be material weakness(es)? 	yes <u>X</u> none reporte
Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs:	Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be repor in accordance with the Uniform Guidance?	rted yes <u>X</u> no
Identification of major programs:	
CFDA number	Name of federal program or cluster
10.069 10.931	Conservation Reserve Program Agricultural Conservation Easement Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:	<u>\$ 750,000</u>
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?	X yes no
(continue	ed)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None